
 
Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG 

COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

 
 Venue The Atrium, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 

Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ  

 Date: Tuesday, 15th March, 2022 

 Time: 1.00 pm 

 Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby          Tel: 07385 362806 

 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 
 

 

3.   Chair's Announcements 
 

 

4.   Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038: Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation 
 
 

1 - 42 

 Exempt Information  
 The Chairman to move: 

That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the following items on grounds 
that, if they were present, there could be disclosed to them exempt 
information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of 
the Act. 
 
 

 

5.   Establishing the Industrial Solutions Hub (ISH) Company 43 - 50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership: Councillor Jeanette Forster (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, 
Councillors David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, Graham Calvin, 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, 
Joseph Ghayouba, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Tom Higgins, 
Linda Jones-Bulman (Deputy Chair), Joan Hully, John Kane, Charles Maudling, 
Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, 
Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, 
Peter Tyson, Carl Walmsley, Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson. 
 
 
Contacts: Direct Dial: 07385 362806 
 E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
 Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 



Full Council 150322 
 
Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038: Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation for 
the Publication Draft 
 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Councillor Andy Pratt, Portfolio Holder for 
Environment, Place and Inclusive Communities 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive 

REPORT AUTHOR: Chris Hoban, Strategic Planning Manager 

 
 

SUMMARY: 
 
The Council is in the process of producing a new Local Plan for the area of 
the borough outside the Lake District National Park: the Copeland Local 
Plan 2021-2038.   
 
The Council is currently consulting on the main Copeland Local Plan 
Publication Draft, which was approved by Full Council on 7th December 
2021.  This document has a gap at Policy H9PU for a Gypsy and Traveller 
Site Allocation, as at that time officers were still awaiting the final Gypsy 
and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) that would confirm the 
need in the borough. 
 
The GTAA has now been completed and identifies a need for 12 pitches in 
the Copeland Local Plan.  This report outlines the site identification process 
and alternatives that have been considered before proposing the two 
potentially suitable sites for approval.   
 
If approved, these sites will be subject to a six week public consultation 
between 21st March and 3rd May 2022 under Regulation 19 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.   
 
Following this consultation the preferred Gypsy and Traveller Site will be 
approved at an extraordinary meeting of Full Council on 19th May, and 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



submitted as part of the Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 to the Secretary of 
State for public Examination on 20th May 2022. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:   
 
That Members approve the Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation 
Paper in Appendix B for a six week public consultation between 21st March 
and 3rd May 2022 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Copeland Borough Council has a responsibility to meet the needs of 

all its residents, including those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers 
and Travelling Showpeople under the Housing and Planning Act 2016.  
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (2015) also states that local 
planning authorities should identify sufficient deliverable and 
developable sites to meet any identified needs. 

 
1.2 The Council has been working alongside the other Cumbrian Local 

Authorities of Allerdale, Barrow-in-Furness, Carlisle, Eden, South 
Lakeland and the Lake District National Park Authority to develop the 
Cumbria Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) to 
understand the current and future needs of the Gypsy and Traveller 
community within Cumbria between 2021-2040.  

 
1.3 This study was completed in January 2022, after the Copeland Local 

Plan Publication Draft was produced. The Council now needs to 
allocate a Gypsy and Traveller site in the final version of the Local 
Plan to meet the needs identified in the GTAA and ensure the Plan’s 
soundness at public Examination. 

 
1.4 To enable this it is proposed, and supported by LDF Panel, that 

Members approve a 6 week public consultation on two potential 
Gypsy and Traveller sites under Regulation 19 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  This 

Page 2



consultation will run from Monday 21st March to Tuesday 3rd May 
2022. 

 
1.5 Following the consultation a further report will be brought to LDF 

Panel on 18th May and Full Council on 19th May which Members can 
consider and approve the preferred site to be submitted along with 
the Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 Publication Draft for independent 
public Examination.  

 
 
2. THE GYPSY AND TRAVELLER ACCOMODATION ASSESSMENT (GTAA) 
 
2.1 Consultants were appointed in 2019 to undertake the GTAA. The 

study assesses the current and future need for Gypsy and Traveller 
accommodation across Cumbria. 

 
2.2 The consultants identified the requirement through a combination of 

desk-based research, stakeholder interviews and engagement with 
members of the Gypsy and Traveller community. 

 

2.3 The GTAA has now been completed and identifies a requirement for 

12 pitches in Copeland to meet the needs of households that meet 

the planning definition of Gypsies and Travellers.   

 

2.4 Unfortunately, this evidence was not available at the time the Local 

Plan Publication Draft was produced in December 2021, therefore 

the Local Plan does not identify a specific allocation at present. It 

does however include a Policy (H9PU) that a site allocation can be 

added to.  

 

 
3. IDENTIFYING A SITE FOR ALLOCATION 

 

Page 3



3.1 The Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 will need to allocate sufficient 

land to meet this need for 12 pitches, which is estimated to require a 

minimum of 0.5ha of land for any site allocation.   

 

3.2 Council officers have been seeking to identify suitable land 

throughout the Local Plan’s production in readiness for a need being 

found in the GTAA.   

 

3.3 The Council issued a Call for Sites from landowners (for housing, 

employment, retail/town centre, gypsy and traveller uses) at the 

Issues and Options and Preferred Options consultation stages of the 

Local Plan production process.  In addition to this a specific call for 

sites for land to be considered as a gypsy and traveller site was 

issued during April and May 2021.  No sites were submitted for gypsy 

and traveller use during any of these calls for sites. 

 

3.4 As a result of this, discussions took place in the second half of 2021 

with the Council’s Property team to identify and consider land that is 

in Council ownership that may be suitable and available to meet the 

identified need.  

 

3.5 A number of sites were identified by the Property team for 

consideration and these have been assessed using the criteria in 

Policy H10PU of the Local Plan.  The sites have also been assessed by 

Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and Lead Local 

Flood Authority. The results of the assessment are contained within 

the Potential Gypsy and Traveller Site Assessment document which 

can be found at Appendix A. 

 

3.6 It should be noted that the list of potential sites was developed 

before the final level of need was known.  Some of the potential sites 

were less than 0.5ha and those sites have therefore been discounted 

from the process as they are now known to be too small.   

Page 4



 

3.7 Following the assessment two sites have been identified as being 

potentially suitable for use by the Gypsy and Traveller community.   

 

These are: 

 GTW3: Land north of Greenbank in Whitehaven; and  

 GTW5: Land at Sneckyeat in Whitehaven 

 

3.8 Both of these sites are considered to be large enough to meet the 

identified need on their own.  It should be noted that while the 

whole of site GTW3 would be required, only part of site GTW5 would 

be required and it is suggested that the rear, eastern portion is most 

suitable for allocation.  

 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 In order to be found sound, the current Local Plan Policy H9PU in the 

Publication Draft and its supporting text will need to be updated so it 

allocates a specific site for Gypsy and Traveller pitches.   

 

4.2 In order to ensure the allocation has been subject to the same level 

of scrutiny as other Local Plan allocations, both sites will also be 

subject to Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), Sustainability 

Appraisal (SA) and other assessments such as Ecology and Heritage 

Impact Assessment. 

 

4.3 Officers are seeking approval to carry out a 6-week (Regulation 19) 

public consultation from 21st March to 3rd May 2022 to gain views on 

the two potential Gypsy and Traveller sites. During this time 

comments will also be sought on minor changes to the text 

supporting Policy H9PU.  The proposed consultation document can 

be found in Appendix B. 

Page 5



 

4.4 The Local Plan is due to be submitted to the Secretary of State on 

Friday 20th May 2022.  Due to the time constraints following the end 

of the public consultation on 3rd May it is proposed to hold an 

extraordinary meeting of Full Council on Thursday 19th May to 

consider and approve the preferred site to be submitted to the 

Secretary of State.   

 

4.5 This decision will be based upon the existing assessment to date, 

additional information from further assessments, the HRA, SA and 

feedback from the 6-week (Regulation 19) public consultation.  

 

4.6 The approved Gypsy and Traveller site allocation and amended text 

for Policy H9PU will then be submitted to the Secretary of State for 

public Examination on 20th May 2022. 

 

4.7 The Examination is expected to last throughout 2022 and once it has 

been completed it is anticipated the Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 

will be adopted in early 2023. 

 
 
5. CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1 The Council is required to allocate land to meet the identified need 

for the Gypsy and Traveller community, which has been calculated to 
be 12 pitches up to 2038. 
 

5.2 Following an initial assessment of potentially available land two sites 
have been identified as potentially suitable: 

 

 GTW3: Land north of Greenbank in Whitehaven; and  

 GTW5: Land at Sneckyeat in Whitehaven 

 

Page 6



5.3 Members are asked to approve a six-week public consultation on the 
two potential site allocations in order to gain a better understanding 
of any issues prior to approving the site to be submitted to the 
Secretary of State. 

 
 
 
6. COMMENTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1 EIA Comments: The Copeland Local Plan is subject to an Equalities 

Impact Assessment, including Policy H10 which outlines the criteria 
for assessing the suitability of a site for Gypsy and Traveller use.  By 
identifying a site the Council will meet its requirements to support 
the housing needs of the Gypsy and Traveller community. 

 
6.2 Climate/Environmental Impact Commentary: The site assessment 

process has considered the potential environmental impacts 
(landscape, ecology etc.) of allocating each of the sites as well as 
their general sustainability in terms of accessibility to services. 

 

6.3 Policy Framework:  
Ambition 1: Ensure Communities can Thrive 

  Ambition 3: Protect and Enhance our Environment 
 
6.4 Other consultee comments, if any: None 
 
 
7. LGR COMMENTARY 
 
7.1  It is important that the Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 is produced 

and adopted by Copeland Borough Council.   
 
7.2 The identification of a Gypsy and Traveller site will enable the 

completion of the Local Plan Publication Draft ready for submission 
to the Secretary of State.  Consulting and approving the potential site 
prior to submission will reduce the risk of delays at Examination, and 
help ensure the Local Plan is found ‘sound’ by the planning inspector 
and can be adopted by the Council.  

Page 7



 
7.3 This will ensure the Copeland area within the new local authority 

(Cumberland) has an up to date Local Plan when making planning 
decisions, and also to continue to attract investment into west 
Cumbria. 

 
 
8. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
8.1 There are no direct resource requirements in terms of allocating a 

Gypsy and Traveller site as this will be picked up in the Strategic 
Planning team’s general work to produce the Copeland Local Plan.   

 
8.2 There is no requirement for the Council to develop a site itself. 
 
8.3 If somebody comes forward wishing to develop the approved site 

and create a Gypsy and Traveller site in Copeland there are likely to 
be future resource implications for the Council’s Property and Legal 
teams for the site’s disposal, and Housing and Environmental Health 
(and possibly other) teams in terms of support and future 
management of the site, but these potential implications are outside 
the scope of the decision in this report. 

 
 
9. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 

THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED? 
 
9.1 The Strategic Planning team will manage the consultation process 

and submission, Examination and Adoption of the Local Plan. 
 
9.2 The Strategic Planning Manager has been in contact with the 

Planning Inspectorate and had confirmation that a later addition of a 
site is acceptable to them, and they prefer this work to be done as 
early as possible so everything can be sent to them in a single 
submission. 

 
 

Page 8



10. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM 
THIS REPORT? 

 
10.1 The public consultation will enable the Council to gather views about 

both sites and make a robust decision about which site to allocate.   
 
10.2 The subsequent approval of a preferred Gypsy and Traveller Site in 

May will then enable the submission of the full Copeland Local Plan 
2021-2038 Publication Draft for public Examination.   

 
10.3 This will mean that the Council is submitting a Plan it considers to be 

‘sound’ and should make the Examination process shorter and with 
greater chance of success than if a Gypsy and Traveller Site is not 
submitted as part of the Copeland Local Plan. 

 
 
11. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 
 
11.1 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: Any legal issues arising have 

been addressed in the report. 
 
11.2 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: The financial implications 

are set out in this report. 
 
 
 
List of Appendices  
 
Appendix A – Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038: Potential Gypsy and Traveller 
Site Assessment 
Appendix B – Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper 
 
List of Background Documents: 
 
Cumbria Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (January 2022) 
https://www.copeland.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/cumbriagtaa
report.pdf  
 

Page 9

https://www.copeland.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/cumbriagtaareport.pdf
https://www.copeland.gov.uk/sites/default/files/attachments/cumbriagtaareport.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 
 

Copeland Local 
Plan 2021-2038: 
Potential Gypsy 
and Traveller Site 
Assessment 
 

Copeland Borough Council  
January 2022 

 

Page 11



 

1 

 

Contents 
Abbreviations .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 2 

GTAA assessment ................................................................................................................................ 2 

Copeland Local Plan and the Outcome of the Initial Assessment ...................................................... 2 

The rest of this report ......................................................................................................................... 3 

2 Site Profiles ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

 

Abbreviations  
FRZ: Flood Risk Zone  

GI: Green Infrastructure  

GTAA: Cumbria Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment  

NPPF: National Planning Policy Framework 

OSA: Open Space Assessment  

SLCA: Settlement Landscape Character Assessment  

  

Page 12



 

2 

1 Introduction  
1.1 Copeland Borough Council has a responsibility to meet the needs of all its residents, 

including those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople under 

the Housing and Planning Act 2016. The requirement to provide suitable and high 

quality Gypsy and Traveller sites is set out in the Government’s Planning Policy for 

Traveller Sites 2015, which should be read in conjunction with the NPPF. This report 

provides an analysis of sites considered for allocation as Gypsy and Traveller sites in 

Copeland.  

GTAA assessment  
1.2 In 2019, the Council commissioned a joint Cumbria Gypsy and Traveller 

Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) alongside the other Cumbrian Local Authorities 

of Allerdale, Barrow-in-Furness, Carlisle, Eden, South Lakeland and the Lake District 

National Park Authority. This was completed in January 2022. The purpose of the 

assessment was to understand the current and future needs of the Gypsy and 

Traveller community within Cumbria between 2021-2040.  

1.3 The consultants identified the requirement for accommodation through a 

combination of desk-based research, stakeholder interviews and engagement with 

members of the Gypsy and Traveller community. 

1.4 Following completion of the study in January 2022, it was identified that Copeland 

has a requirement for 12 pitches to meet the need of the Gypsy and Traveller 

community in the borough.  

Copeland Local Plan and the Outcome of the Initial Assessment 
1.5 The emerging Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 is required to allocate appropriate 

land to accommodate the identified need.  Policy H9PU within the Publication Draft 

will allocate a site to meet the identified need of 12 pitches. It is anticipated that to 

meet the need, any site selected should be over 0.5ha. Any potential allocation will 

be required to meet the criteria in Policy H10PU. 

1.6 Council officers have been seeking to identify suitable land throughout the Local 

Plan’s production.  The Council issued a Call for Sites from landowners (for housing, 

employment, retail/town centre, gypsy and traveller uses) at the Issues and Options 

and Preferred Options consultation stages of the Local Plan production process.  In 

addition to this a specific call for sites for land to be considered as a Gypsy and 

Traveller site was issued during April and May 2021.  No sites were submitted for 

Gypsy and Traveller use during any of these calls for sites. 

1.7 As a result of this, discussions took place in late 2021 to identify Council owned land 

which may be suitable to meet the identified need. 11 sites have been identified as 

being available: 6 sites in Whitehaven, 1 in Egremont, 2 in Cleator Moor and 2 in 

Distington. This report provides an assessment of these sites.  

  

Page 13



 

3 

1.8 At this stage, two sites are considered to be potentially suitable for allocation:  

• GTW3: Land north of Greenbank in Whitehaven 

• GTW5: Land at Sneckyeat 

1.9 Both sites will be subject to Habitats Regulations Assessment, Sustainability 

Appraisal and additional assessments including Ecology and Heritage Impact 

Assessment.  These assessments, together with feedback following a public 

consultation will be used to update this assessment report as appropriate. 

The rest of this report  
1.8 It is important that any site allocated for use as Gypsy and Traveller pitches 

undergoes rigorous site assessments, using the same methods as sites for traditional 

residential use. This report outlines the sites that have been considered for this 

purpose and any constraints that have been identified.  

1.9 The constraints that have been considered through this site assessment are based on 

criteria in H10PU. These include the following:  

• Whether the site is located within Flood Zone 2 or 3 

• Impact on landscape character  

• Impact on heritage assets  

• Impacts on biodiversity  

• Relationship with the existing settlement  

• If there is safe and convenient access to the highway  

• Proximity to facilities  

• If development of the site raises likely amenity issues  

• Whether the site is capable of suitable planting and landscaping  

1.10 A total of 11 sites were initially identified by the Council, with four being ruled out 

due to being under 0.5ha and therefore too small to accommodate need, as shown 

in Table 1 below. The remaining sites have been assessed against the criteria listed 

above. Each site has been given an individual profile, with a conclusion from the 

Strategic Planning Team provided at the end of each.  

Table 1: Sites discounted due to size constraints 

Settlement  Site ref Site name  Site size  

Whitehaven GTW6 The former Skate 
park, Wagon Road  

0.43ha 

Cleator Moor GTC1 CBC land to the rear of 
terraced properties to 
the east of Birks Road 
(old gas works site)  
 

0.34ha 

Distington GTD1 Hinnings Road former 
Play area  

0.21ha 

Distington  GTD2 Car park rear Harriets 
Home 

0.14ha 

Page 14



 

4 

2 Site Profiles  

 
Site reference   GTW1 Site name  Land adjacent to the 

former Betting Shop, Rear 
Bowfell Rd 

Settlement Whitehaven Site area  0.66ha 

Flood zone Flood zone 1  

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

Protected open space (OSA - amenity greenspace). Identified as 
important GI linking Whitehaven to the undeveloped countryside 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Unlikely - no assets in close proximity 
 

Impact on Biodiversity  Site appears to be managed with little evidence of potential habitats with 
the exception of a small number of trees along the northern boundary 
 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Well connected 

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Potential for access from Meadow Rd. Footpath runs along western 
boundary 
 

Proximity to facilities  Close proximity 

Suitable amenity?  Narrow shape of site limits the space available between the pitches and 
dwellings on Bowfell Rd. Potential overlooking and impacts upon privacy 
 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Shape of site may reduce the opportunities for this 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Do not allocate due to OSA protection and potential impacts on privacy.  
Also, the southern end of the site may be too narrow to develop and 
provide a suitable access. 

  

Page 15



 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 

6 

 
Site reference   GTW2 Site name  Land adjacent to 

Meadow Road units  
 

Settlement Whitehaven Site area  9.73ha 

Flood zone  Majority of site in FRZ2 and partially in FRZ3 

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

Set within a valley identified in SLCA as landscape scale GI. 
 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Unlikely - no assets in close proximity 
 

Impact on Biodiversity  Potential impact due to proximity of beck, presence of marsh land and 
tree/shrubs in south of site 
 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Well connected 

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Potential for connection into highway to south and east. Existing 
footpaths to site from residential area to south 
 

Proximity to facilities  Close proximity 

Suitable amenity?  Yes - nearest residential dwellings are to the south and potential for 
existing group of trees to form buffer between the two 
 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Scale of the site allows this, an appropriate buffer should be created 
along the railway line if the site is taken forward 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Do not allocate due to flood risk and landscape character 
 

Page 17



 

7 

  

Page 18



 

8 

 

 
Site reference   GTW3 Site name  Land north of Greenbank, 

Whitehaven  
 

Settlement Whitehaven Site area  0.83ha 

Flood zone Flood zone 1 

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

Identified as part of a wider area of Strategic Green Infrastructure and 
located at the bottom of a Prominent Hillside in the SLCA. 
 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Unlikely - no assets in close proximity 
 

Impact on Biodiversity  Site is wooded and self seeded which could result in the potential loss of 
biodiversity 
 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Well connected 

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Existing access 

Proximity to facilities  Close proximity 

Suitable amenity?  No likely impacts - nearest residential dwellings are to south west  
 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Potentially - buffer would be required along Low Road and potentially 
around existing on site utilities infrastructure 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Some utilities infrastructure on site which may require buffer retaining 
and reduce site size. Potential for allocation 
 

 

  

Page 19



 

9 

  

Page 20



 

10 

 
Site reference   GTW4 Site name  Land along road to St Bees 

between Greenbank and 
Mirehouse  

Settlement Whitehaven Site area  14.1ha 

Flood zone Flood zone 1 

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

SLCA identifies site as an important GI link that extends from the 
countryside into the settlement. Prominent site above housing estate 
due to topography. Protected Greenspace in OSA (natural and semi-
natural) 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Grade II listed Greenbank Hotel to West – development may affect the 
setting of this 

Impact on Biodiversity  Site heavily wooded - impact likely to be high 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Well connected 

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Potential accesses from west, east and south, but may be difficult for 
most due to topography 

Proximity to facilities  Close proximity 

Suitable amenity?  Could be developed in a way that didn’t harm amenities of nearby 
residents 
 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Scale of the site allows for this 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Do not allocate site due to the impact on landscape character and 
biodiversity.  

Page 21



 

11 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

12 

 
Site reference   GTW5 Site name  CBC Land at Sneckyeat 

Settlement Whitehaven Site area  1.9ha 

Flood zone  Flood zone 1  

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

Identified as landscape scale GI in SLCA. Identified as protected open 
space (semi/natural greenspace) in OSA. Whitehaven has no under 
provision of open space in this typology 
 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Unlikely as there are no heritage assets in close proximity 
 

Impact on Biodiversity  Some individual trees and scrub could provide potential habitat 
 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Well connected 

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Potential access from Homewood Road or Sneckyeat Road 

Proximity to facilities  Close proximity 

Suitable amenity?  Yes, the nearest residential dwellings on opposite side of Homewood Rd 
 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Yes, scale of site allows for this 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Potential for allocation due to oversupply of semi natural greenspace in 
Whitehaven identified through the OSA.  The most suitable part of the 
site for this use is likely to be the eastern section, which is well set back 
from Homewood Road. 

 

  

Page 23



 

13 

  

Page 24



 

14 

 
Site reference   GTE1 Site name  Down by skatepark below 

Highbank House and near 
river at Egremont  

Settlement Egremont Site area  1.58ha 

Flood zone  Flood zone 2 and 3 

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

Site contains 2 protected open spaces (OSA - semi-natural open space 
and play area).  
 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Unlikely - no assets in close proximity 
 

Impact on Biodiversity  Site is heavily wooded in parts  
 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Site feels backland in character and pavement connections to the rest of 
the town are discontinuous 
 

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Existing access 

Proximity to facilities  In close proximity, but relatively poor connections to existing facilities  

Suitable amenity?  Unlikely given size of site and proximity of neighbouring dwellings 
 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Yes, the scale of site allows for this 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Do not allocate due to flood risk and the Protected Open Greenspace 
designation  

 

 

Page 25



 

15 

  

Page 26



 

16 

 

 
Site reference   GTC2 Site name  Green space at Buckle/ 

Clayton Avenue 

Settlement Cleator Moor Site area  0.73ha 

Flood zone  Flood zone 1 

Impact on Landscape 
Character  

Protected open space (OSA - amenity greenspace). Cleator Moor 
currently has an under provision in this typology 
 

Impact on Heritage 
assets 

Unlikely - no assets in close proximity 
 

Impact on Biodiversity  Individual trees and shrubs around boundary and small group of trees in 
centre could be retained - rest of site managed open space and unlikely 
to provide habitat 
 

Relationship to existing 
settlement  

Well connected  

Safe and convenient 
access to the highway   

Potential access from Buckle Avenue  

Proximity to facilities  Close proximity 

Suitable amenity?  Pitches would have to be located within the centre of the site to provide 
adequate distance from surrounding dwellings in order to prevent 
overlooking and protect privacy 

Capable of appropriate 
landscaping and 
planting? 

Yes, although this is limited due to the size of the site 
 

Strategic planning 
comments and 
conclusion  

Do not allocate due to the under provision of amenity greenspace in 
Cleator Moor, as well as potential privacy and amenity issues as a result 
of the site being surrounded by dwellings on all sides.  

 

Page 27



 

17 

 

Page 28



  

 

 
 

Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038: 
Publication Draft Addendum 
 
Gypsy and Traveller Site 
Allocation 
 
Regulation 19 Consultation 
Paper 
 

 

March 2022 

 

Page 29



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

1 
 

 

  

Page 30



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

2 
 

1. Introduction  

1.1 This document is to complete the Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 by updating 

Policy H9PU and its supporting text in the Publication Draft and allocating a 

identifying a Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation. 

1.2 The Council has carried out an assessment to identify potentially suitable sites and, 

to date, this process has identified two sites that could be taken forward as a Gypsy 

and Traveller Site allocation. The two options, along with proposed new policy 

wording for each, can be found in Appendices A and B. 

1.3 The new policy wording and the two potential sites under consideration will be 

subject to a 6 week public consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, which will run from 

Monday 21st March to Tuesday 3rd May 2022. 

1.4 After this, and taking into consideration additional evidence such as the Habitats 

Regulation Assessment and Sustainability Appraisal, the Council will select one of 

the two sites to include within the policy as an allocated site. This will be submitted 

to the Secretary of State, alongside the Local Plan Publication Draft, for public 

Examination. 

1.5 If you wish to make any comments on the updated Policy H9PU, supporting text or 

the site allocations under consideration (as identified in Appendices A and B) please 

do so using the accompanying Representation Form no later than 5.00pm on 

Tuesday 3rd May 2022. 

 

  

Page 31



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

3 
 

2. Background 

2.1 The Council has a responsibility to meet the housing needs of all its residents 

including those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 

under the Housing and Planning Act 2016. 

2.2 At the time the Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038 Publication Draft was produced, the 

evidence identifying the need for Gypsy and Traveller pitches was incomplete. The 

draft Cumbria Gypsy and Traveller Assessment (GTAA), which identifies needs 

across the full county, did however indicate that the need in Copeland would be 

between 1 and 12 pitches.  

2.3 In order to be proactive, Council Officers included the following policy and text 

within the Local Plan Publication Draft. The intention was that the gaps within the 

policy could then be filled in, and a site specified, once the evidence was available. 

This would be subject to public consultation and submitted alongside the Local Plan 

as a modification to make the Plan sound. 

2.4 The existing text as shown in the Publication Draft is shown below. 

13.12 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
 
13.12.1 The Council has a responsibility to meet the housing needs of all its residents 

including those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
under the Housing and Planning Act 2016. We also have a duty under the 
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015 to ensure a rolling five-year supply of 
deliverable sites for travellers. 

 
13.12.2 A Cumbria wide Gypsy and Traveller Study is currently being produced. The 

initial findings indicate a need for between 1 and 12 pitches in the borough to 
accommodate a Copeland resident currently living in bricks and mortar housing 
and their extended family.  

 
13.12.3 A call for sites was carried out in 2021, however no sites were put forward for 

consideration. The Council will therefore review its own land assets against the 
criteria in Policy H10PU below. 

 
13.12.4 The Council is currently assessing a number of its own sites against the criteria 

in Policy H10PU below and is seeking views from the Lead Local Flood Authority 
and Highways Authority. Potential suitable sites will be subject to a 6-week 
public consultation in early 2022. The site taken forward will then be identified 
in Policy H9PU below. 

 
13.12.5 Should a need for any additional or short term/transient pitches arise following 

the Plan’s adoption, applications will be dealt with in accordance with Policy 
H10PU below.   

 

Page 32



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

4 
 

Strategic Policy H9PU: Allocated Site for Gypsies, Traveller and Travelling 
Showpeople  

 
 

The following site is allocated for x pitches for gypsy, traveller or travelling show-
people mobile homes: 
 
 *Site to be identified through a separate consultation in early 2022 once the need for 
pitches has been confirmed* 
 
The site must be retained for this purpose and the site must be designed in 
accordance with criteria b-g of Policy H10PU. 

 

 

 
Policy H10PU: Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Sites 
 

 
 
Planning applications for the development of new or extension of existing Gypsy and 
Traveller sites will be supported where it accords with the Development Plan and 
meets the following criteria: 

a) There is a demonstrated need; 

b) The site would not lead to the unacceptable loss, or significant adverse impact 

upon landscape character and value, heritage assets and their settings, nature 

conservation or biodiversity sites; 

c) The site is well related to an existing sustainable settlement, with safe and 

convenient access to the main highway network, and a range of basic and 

everyday community services and facilities including education, health, 

shopping facilities and transport provision;  

d) The site would offer a suitable level of residential amenity to any proposed 

occupiers, and will not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the amenity 

of nearby residents;  

e) The site is capable of being designed to ensure that appropriate landscaping 

and planting would provide and maintain visual amenity in perpetuity; 

f) Pitch size, type and parking will be designed in accordance with national 

guidance; and 

g) The site can be adequately drained.  

 
 

 

Page 33



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

5 
 

3. What the Evidence Shows 

3.1 In January 2022, the Council received the final Cumbria Gypsy and Traveller 

Assessment. This identified a need for 12 Gypsy and Traveller1 pitches based on a 

single household currently living in bricks and mortar housing in the borough and 

their extended family.  

3.2 As can be seen from Table 1 below, taken from the GTAA, the majority of that need 

is within years 0-5 of the Local Plan period. 

Table 1: Number of Gypsy and Traveller Pitches Required from 2021 Onwards 

 

4. Meeting the Identified Need 

4.1 Calls for Sites were carried out at Issues and Options and Preferred Options stages 

of the Local Plan process. A specific call for Gypsy and Traveller Sites was also 

carried out in 2021. Unfortunately, no sites were put forward for consideration. 

4.2 As no sites were submitted the Council then carried out a review of its own 

landholdings in late 2021 and identified a number of potential sites for 

consideration: 6 sites in Whitehaven, 1 in Egremont, 2 in Cleator Moor and 2 in 

Distington.  

4.3 Four of the sites were excluded from further assessment as they were too small to 

accommodate 12 pitches. The remaining sites were then assessed by Council 

officers against the criteria set out in Policy H10PU above to determine constraints 

and suitability. The views of Cumbria County Council, as Lead Local Flood Authority 

and Highways Authority were also sought and their comments also informed the 

assessment of suitability. 

4.4 The findings of the assessments, and maps of all the sites considered, are included 

in the accompanying Potential Gypsy and Traveller Site Assessment. 

4.5 The least constrained and most suitable sites are considered to be: 

 Land north of Greenbank in Whitehaven (see Appendix A)  

 Land at Sneckyeat Industrial Estate in Whitehaven (see Appendix B) 

4.6 The decision regarding which of the two sites to allocate will be informed by a 

Habitats Regulations Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal, other assessments such 

as Ecology and Heritage Impact Assessments, as well as feedback from this 

consultation.  

                                                           
1 No need was identified for Traveling Showpeople in the borough. 

Page 34



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

6 
 

4.7 At this stage, it is unknown whether the Council will manage the site or whether 

this will be carried out by an external organisation. Such details are not required as 

part of the Local Plan process and would be for a future meeting of the Council, if 

an approach is made to develop the site. 

4.8 It should be noted that an allocation does not guarantee that planning permission 

would be granted for gypsy and traveller pitches on the site. Approval would be 

subject to conformity with the Development Plan and the merits of the proposal. 

An allocation does however demonstrate that the principle of gypsy and traveller 

pitches on the site is acceptable. 

5. Proposed Changes to Policy H9PU and its supporting text 

5.1 The Council is proposing to make some amendments to Section 13.12 and Policy 

H9PU of the Copeland Local Plan Publication Draft now that the level of need has 

been identified. The proposed changes are set out in the box below; for ease of 

reference: 

 text proposed for deletion is shown as strikethrough  

 text to be added is shown in bold blue text.  

5.2 The two site allocation options for inclusion within Policy H9PU are shown in 

Appendices A and B.  

5.3 No changes are proposed to Policy H10PU. 

13.12 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Sites 
 
13.12.1 The Council has a responsibility to meet the housing needs of all its residents 

including those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 
under the Housing and Planning Act 2016. We also have a duty under the 
Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015 to ensure a rolling five-year supply of 
deliverable sites for travellers. 

 
13.12.2 A Cumbria wide Gypsy and Traveller Study was is currently being produced in 

January 2022. The initial findings indicate identify a need for between 1 and 12 
Gypsy and Traveller pitches in the borough to accommodate a Copeland 
resident currently living in bricks and mortar housing and their extended family.  

 
13.12.3 A call for sites was carried out in 2021, however no sites were put forward for 

consideration. The Council will has therefore reviewed its own land assets 
against the criteria in Policy H10PU below. Please see the Gypsy and Traveller 
Site Assessment Paper for further details regarding site selection. 

 
13.12.4 The Council is currently assessing a number of its own sites against the criteria in 

Policy H10PU below and is seeking views from the Lead Local Flood Authority 
and Highways Authority. Potential suitable sites will be were subject to a 6-week 

Page 35



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

7 
 

public consultation in April/May early 2022. The site taken forward will then be 
identified in Policy H9PU below. 

 
13.12.5 Should a need for any additional or short term/transient pitches arise following 

the Plan’s adoption, applications will be dealt with in accordance with Policy 
H10PU below.   

 

Strategic Policy H9PU: Allocated Site for Gypsies, and Travellers and Travelling 
Showpeople  

 
 

The following site is allocated for x 12 pitches for gypsy, traveller or travelling show-
people mobile homes: 
 
Insert Site following consultation (see appendices A and B for options) 
 
 *Site to be identified through a separate consultation in early 2022 once the need for 
pitches has been confirmed* 
 
The site must be retained for this purpose and the site must be designed in 
accordance with criteria b-g of Policy H10PU. 

 

 
 

6. Focus of the Consultation and How to Respond 

6.1 The Council wishes to seek the views of stakeholders and interested members of 

the public regarding the suitability of the sites in Appendices A and B as a Gypsy 

and Traveller Site allocation. Views are also sought on the wording of the policy and 

text as set out in the two appendices. This is the wording that would appear in the 

Submission Draft of the Local Plan depending on which site was taken forward. 

6.2 The public consultation will run for a total of 6 weeks from Monday 21st March 

until Tuesday 3rd May. Any response received following this date will not be taken 

into consideration. 

6.3 Responses must be made using the relevant submission form sent to 

localplanconsultation@copeland.gov.uk and must clearly set out reasons for 

support/objection. Any comments received will be made publicly available 

(personal details will be omitted) and will be reproduced in a future Consultation 

Responses document.  

 

Page 36

mailto:localplanconsultation@copeland.gov.uk


Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

8 
 

6.4 Responses can also be submitted by post to the following address: 

Strategic Planning 

Copeland Borough Council 

Market Hall 

Market Place 

Whitehaven 

Cumbria 

CA28 7JG 

6.5 Should you require any further information please contact the Strategic Planning 

Team on 01946 598300 or at the email address above. 

  

Page 37



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

9 
 

7. Appendix A – Proposed new wording for Policy H9PU, its 

Supporting Text and the Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation 

north of Greenbank, Whitehaven 
 

13.12 Gypsy and Traveller Site 
 
13.12.1 The Council has a responsibility to meet the housing needs of all its residents including 
those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016. We also have a duty under the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015 to 
ensure a rolling five-year supply of deliverable sites for travellers. 
 
13.12.2 A Cumbria wide Gypsy and Traveller Study was produced in January 2022. The findings 
identify a need for 12 Gypsy and Traveller pitches in the borough to accommodate a Copeland 
resident currently living in bricks and mortar housing and their extended family.  
 
13.12.3 A call for sites was carried out in 2021, however no sites were put forward for 
consideration. The Council has therefore reviewed its own land assets against the criteria in Policy 
H10PU below. Please see the Gypsy and Traveller Site Assessment Paper for further details 
regarding site selection. 
 
13.12.4 Potential suitable sites were subject to a 6-week public consultation in April/May 2022.  
 
13.12.5 Should a need for any additional or short term/transient pitches arise following the Plan’s 
adoption, applications will be dealt with in accordance with Policy H10PU below.   
 

Strategic Policy H9PU: Allocated Site for Gypsies and Travellers  

 
 

The following site is allocated for 12 pitches for Gypsy, Traveller or Travelling Show-
people mobile homes: 
 
Land north of Greenbank, Whitehaven 
 
The site must be retained for this purpose and the site must be designed in 
accordance with criteria b-g of Policy H10PU. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Page 38



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

10 
 

 

 

 

  

Page 39



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

11 
 

8. Appendix B – Proposed new wording for Policy H9PU, its 

Supporting Text and the Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation at 

Sneckyeat, Whitehaven  
 

13.12 Gypsy and Traveller Site 
 
13.12.1 The Council has a responsibility to meet the housing needs of all its residents including 
those who identify as Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016. We also have a duty under the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015 to 
ensure a rolling five-year supply of deliverable sites for travellers. 
 
13.12.2 A Cumbria wide Gypsy and Traveller Study was produced in January 2022. The findings 
identify a need for 12 Gypsy and Traveller pitches in the borough to accommodate a Copeland 
resident currently living in bricks and mortar housing and their extended family.  
 
13.12.3 A call for sites was carried out in 2021, however no sites were put forward for 
consideration. The Council has therefore reviewed its own land assets against the criteria in Policy 
H10PU below. Please see the Gypsy and Traveller Site Assessment Paper for further details 
regarding site selection. 
 
13.12.4 Potential suitable sites were subject to a 6-week public consultation in April/May 2022.  
 
13.12.5 Should a need for any additional or short term/transient pitches arise following the Plan’s 
adoption, applications will be dealt with in accordance with Policy H10PU below.   
 

Strategic Policy H9PU: Allocated Site for Gypsies and Travellers  

 
 

The following site is allocated for 12 pitches for Gypsy, Traveller or Travelling Show-
people mobile homes: 
 
Land at Sneckyeat Industrial Estate, Whitehaven 
 
The site must be retained for this purpose and the site must be designed in 
accordance with criteria b-g of Policy H10PU. 
 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 40



Copeland Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation Consultation Paper  March 2022 

12 
 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Copeland Local Plan 2021-2038: Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation
	2022-03-15 - Appendix A G&T Site Assessment
	2022-03-15 - Appendix B Consultation Document

	5 Establishing the Industrial Solutions Hub (ISH) Company
	ISH Company - Matters Reserved for Member - clean 07.03.22_6483760_1.docx_6485416_1


